
 
BAREFOOT BAY 

RECREATION DISTRICT 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District Regular Meeting 

September 14, 2023 at 1:00 PM 
 
 

Agenda 
Please turn off all cell phones 

 

 

1. Thought of the Day 
2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 
3. Roll Call 
4. Additions or Deletions to the Agenda 
5. Approval of the Agenda 
6. Presentations and Proclamations 
  A. Employee Appreciation 
7. Approval of Minutes 
  A. BOT regular meeting minutes dated August 22, 2023. 
8. Treasurer’s Report 
  A. Treasurer's Report 
9. Audience Participation 
10. Unfinished Business 
  A. Golf Course Fees and Charges 
11. New Business 
  A. Classification & Compensation Recommendation 
  B. Liability & Workers Compensation Insurance Award of Contract 
  C. Lien Recording Service Award of Contract 
  D. FY25 Budget Development Calendar 
12. Manager’s Report 
  A. September 14, 2023 Manager's Report 
13. Attorney’s Report 
14. Incidental Trustee Remarks 
15. Adjournment 

 

Page 1 of 100



 

 

 
If an individual decides to appeal any decision made by the Recreation District with respect to any matter considered at 
this meeting, a record of the proceedings will be required and the individual will need to ensure that a verbatim 
transcript of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based 
(FS 286.0105). Such person must provide a method for recording the proceedings verbatim. 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District Regular Meeting 

Page 2 of 100



Milestone Anniversaries 

 

Julieanne Hanscom  Property Services   5 Years 

Kathy Mendes   Food and Beverage  15 Years 

   

 

 

Page 3 of 100



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 

1 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 

August 22, 2023 

1PM –Building D&E 

 

Meeting Called to Order                                                                       

The Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees held a Meeting on August 22, 2023, Building D&E 

1225 Barefoot Boulevard, Barefoot Bay, Florida. Mr. Amoss called the meeting to order at 1PM. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag  

Led by Ms. Hansen. 

 

Roll Call  

Present: Mr. Grunow, Mr. Amoss, Mr. Klosky, Ms. Hansen. Also, present, Kent Cichon, Community Manager, 

Stephanie Brown, District Clerk, Garrett Olsen, General Counsel, Rich Armington, Resident Relations/HR Manager, 

Matt Goetz, Property Services Manager and Charles Henley, Finance Manager. Mr. Brinker was excused. 

 

Additions or Deletions to the Agenda 
None. 
 
Approval of the Agenda 

 Mr. Grunow made a motion to approve the agenda as is. Second by Ms. Hansen. Motion passed. 
 
Presentations and Proclamation 
None. 

 

Approval of Minutes  
Regular BOT minutes dated July 25, 2023, Townhall minutes dated July 27, 2023, and Fee Workshop minutes 
dated August 3, 2023, were approved as submitted. 

 

Treasurer’s Report  
Ms. Hansen submitted the Treasurer’s Report for August 22, 2023, approved as written. 

 
 

Page 4 of 100



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 

2 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

Audience Participation 
 
Jim Miller-567 Dolphin Circle-suggested having a designated smoking area away from Pool #1 but allow residents 
to come back to the seats they held previously when they are done smoking. 
 
Donna Collette- 854 Periwinkle Circle-suggested having a second location (behind Pool #1) for smokers during 
night entertainment and allowing smokers to use the current smoking section during the day. 
 
Richard Schwatlow-636 Marlin Circle-stated residents attend BOT meetings and get actively involved. 
 
Unfinished Business 
 
Pool #1 Designated Smoking Area 
 
Staff recommends the BOT designate two smoking sections for the Pool #1 area.  
 
Mr. Amoss proposed moving the current smoking section and designate the area adjacent to the west side of 
section 3/D as the new smoking section. Mr. Klosky, Ms. Hansen, and Mr. Grunow agreed with Mr. Amoss. Ms. 
Hansen asked if there was an estimated timeframe to complete the new smoking section area. Mr. Goetz 
responded that it may take a few weeks. 
 
Ms. Hansen made a motion to designate section D and 3 (as listed on the aerial map) as the new smoking section 
for the Pool #1 area. Second by Mr. Grunow. Motion passed. 
 
New Business 
 
BBRD Policy Manual Amendments: Budget Process, Sealed Bids/Quotes, Fee Schedule, and Use of Kitchen 
Facilities 
 
Resolution 2023-12 read by Mr. Olsen: 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT AMENDING THE 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT POLICY MANUAL TO REMOVE YEARLY BUDGET SCHEDULE; AMENDING THE 
PROCESS FOR POSTING SEALED BIDS; AMENDING THE FEE SCHEDULE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Mr. Grunow made a motion to approve Resolution 2023-12 as read. Second by Mr. Klosky. Motion passed. 
 

Page 5 of 100



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 

3 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

Golf Course Cart Lease Award of Contract 
 
Staff recommends the BOT award RFP 2023-01 – Golf Course Golf Cart Lease for Barefoot Bay Executive Golf 
Course to one of the three vendors that submitted a qualified proposal; authorize staff to negotiate a contract 
with the selected vendor and if contract negotiations are not successful, authorize staff to commence contract 
negotiations with the BOT’s second ranked vendor; and authorize the BOT Chairman to sign the contract in an 
amount not to exceed the vendors’ proposed bid.  
 
Ms. Hansen made a motion to award RFP 2023-01 – Golf Course Golf Cart Lease for Barefoot Bay Executive Golf 
Course to Yamaha, authorize staff to negotiate a contract with Yamah and if contract negotiations are not 
successful, authorize staff to commence contract negotiations with Club Car; and authorize the BOT Chairman to 
sign the contract in an amount not to exceed the vendors’ proposed bid. Second by Mr. Klosky. Motion passed. 
 
BBRD Golf Course Fees & Charges 
 
Resolution 2023-13 read by Mr. Olsen: 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT AMENDING THE 
BAREFOOT BAY GOLF COURSE FEE AND CHARGE SCHEDULE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Mr. Grunow made a motion to approve Resolution 2012-13 as read. Second by Mr. Klosky. Motion passed. 
 
Authorization of Certificate to Non-Ad Valorem Assessment Roll for FY23/24 and Resolution 
 
Resolution 2023-11 read by Mr. Olsen: 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR THE 
PREPARATION, ADOPTION, AND AUTHORIZATION OF CERTIFICATION OF A NON- AD VALOREM ASSESSMENT 
ROLL; PROVIDING FOR CORRECTIONS OF ERRORS AND OMISSIONS; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Mr. Grunow made a motion to approve Resolution 2012-11 as read. Second by Mr. Klosky. Motion passed. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6 of 100



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 

4 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

Employee Insurance Renewals 
 
Staff recommends the BOT select Florida Blue due to its low deductibles and very competitive premiums and 
Principle Insurance due to its low premiums and Employee satisfaction for the last five years.  
 
Ms. Hansen asked if the additional 9 employees not budgeted decide to take coverage, how outside of the 
employee insurance budget would BBRD be. Mr. Cichon responded that he did not have the exact figure but 
estimated $90-$100k. Ms. Hansen spoke in favor of allocating more in future budgets. Mr. Grunow agreed with 
Ms. Hansen. 
 
Ms. Hansen made a motion to select Florida Blue and Principle Insurance. Second by Mr. Klosky. Motion passed.  
 
ADA Discussion; Direction to Staff 
 
The General Counsel recommends the Board of Trustees take the following action:  
 
Direct Staff to immediately address ADA compliance issues with respect to pool 1 (if any), including contracting to 
modify an existing ramp to meet ADA standards. 
 
Direct Staff to develop a self-evaluation program pursuant to current ADA requirements under the direction of 
the Community Manager 
 
Mr. Olsen gave an overview of the ADA regulations that apply to the Barefoot Bay Recreation District (specifically 
Title 2). 
 
Ms. Hansen asked if there is a standard form or checklist that staff would use for the ADA self-evaluation. Mr. 
Olsen responded that there may be one, but it would be helpful to designate a staff member to conduct the 
evaluation. Ms. Hansen asked for a timeframe for the ADA self-evaluation. Mr. Cichon responded that he did not 
have a timeframe as of yet, but that it would be a lengthy process. Mr. Grunow asked if costs had been 
researched to hire an ADA consultant. Ms. Brown responded last year’s quote was roughly $30k. 
 
Consensus of the BOT to immediately address ADA compliance issues with respect to pool 1 (if any), including 
contracting to modify an existing ramp to meet ADA standards and to develop a self-evaluation program pursuant 
to current ADA requirements under the direction of the Community Manager. 
 
 
 
 

Page 7 of 100



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 

5 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

Manager’s Report 
 
Finance 
Assessment received – 99.88% collected or $4,204,852.  Balance to collect $5,189. 
 
Resident Relations 
ARCC Meeting 7/18/2023 

• 4 Old Business – approved 

• 23 Consent Permits – approved  

• 10 Other Permits – 8 approved, 1 denied, 1 tabled 
 
ARCC Meeting 8/1/2023 

• 1 Old Business – approved 

• 20 Consent Permits – approved  

• 8 Other Permits – approved 
 
VC Meeting 07/14/2023 

• 14 Cases – came into compliance prior to the meeting 

• 1 Case – DOR is working with the homeowner 

• 11 Cases – found to be in violation 
 
 VC Meeting 07/28/2023 

• 22 Cases – came into compliance prior to the meeting 

• 1 Case – DOR is working with the homeowner 

• 7 Cases – found to be in violation 
 

 
Food & Beverage 

• Even though the weather is hot, we are having a rainy summer, and Pool #1 is under an 

improvement project, we still have plenty of food and beverage events in the Bay.  

The 19th Hole holds a fun Pizz-Asta night offering flatbread pizzas and pasta from 4 - 7pm every 

Wednesday. Breakfast is also available at the 19th Hole on Sundays from 7am - noon and music in the 

band shell every Thursday from 4:30 - 7:30pm. We continue to hold our successful Rustic Roast every 

Thursday in Building A from 4 - 7pm.  These are all summer hours.  We are also happy to report that 

music is back on the Lakeside of the Lounge stage on Friday, Saturday and two Sundays per month. 

 

Page 8 of 100



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 

6 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

Property Services 

• Pools 

o Painted the upper deck of Pool #1 

o Repaired the leak at Pool #2 

o Investigated the vacuum pressure issue for Pool #3 and replaced the main pump  

• Replaced the restroom doors in the Lounge and began interior repairs in preparation for 

painting 

• Investigated and addressed a portion of the air conditioning issues in the 19 th Hole   

• Addressed an electrical issue for Building C  

• Addressed various mowing issues for the stormwater canal bank  

• Removed a dead palm tree near the walking path at Building A  

• Prepared equipment for upcoming projects  

 
Golf-Pro Shop 

• Irrigation Pump #3 motor was replaced and is functioning properly  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9 of 100



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 

7 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

Attorney’s Report 
 
Mr. Olsen provided updates on DOR cases-418 Barefoot Blvd will have a hearing scheduled for a Motion for 
Default Summary Judgement and he will be trying to schedule a hearing for 526 Persimmon for a Motion to Show 
Cause. He also stated that the Food & Beverage waiver has been completed. 
 
Incidental Trustee Remarks 
 
Ms. Hansen spoke in favor of staff forming a safety committee. 
 
Mr. Grunow expressed his gratitude DOR staff working with homeowners in regard to violations and those who 
hosted the kids swim event. He also reminded residents of the shred event being held in the Winn Dixie parking 
lot on September 28, 2023. 
 
Mr. Klosky asked for an update on the beach restroom project. Mr. Cichon responded that discussions regarding 
questions from Brevard County are coming to a close and the last communication he had was regarding adding 
an additional parking space. Mr. Klosky also asked for an update on the low sand area being filled in at the beach. 
Mr. Olsen responded that permission would be needed from Brevard County to fill in the sand and that 
maintenance is the responsibility of BBRD but anything past the dune would be the responsibility of Brevard 
County.  
 
Mr. Amoss spoke in favor of the new BOT selecting the future BOT Townhall Meeting dates. 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
The next regular meeting will be on September 14, 2023, at 1pm in Building D/E. 

 Mr. Amoss adjourned. 

 Meeting adjourned at 2:05pm. 

 
 
_____________________________    _____________________________ 

         Jeff Grunow, Secretary         Stephanie Brown, District Clerk 

Page 10 of 100



Cash and Investments Balances in General Fund as of 9/5/23

Petty Cash Total Petty Cash: 2,500.00$              

Non Interest Bearing Accounts

MB&T Operating Account 96,034.49              

Interest Bearing Accounts

MB&T Money Market Account 1,318,726.77        

Valley National Bank 50,924.37              

FL Class 209,700.64           

SBA Reserve Account 737,134.73           

Investment Accounts

FL Trust - Short Term Bond Fund 110,157.02           

Total Cash Balances in General Fund: 2,525,178.02$   

Total Daily Deposits and Assessments Received for 8/12/23 -9/5/23

Daily Deposits:  $         109,021.96 

Assessments Received:                              -   

Total Deposits Received: 109,021.96$      

Expenditures for 8/12/23 - 9/5/23
Check 

Number Vendor Description Check Amount

62138 BrightView Golf Maintenance, Inc Golf Course Maintenance 44,915.67

62146 Florida Blue Employee Health Insurance 30,358.00

62162 Special District Services, Inc Management Fees 14,284.03

62147 Florida Power & Light Co Electricity 11,689.34

62164 TLC Engineering Solutions Inc Beach Restroom Permit, Expenses 8,505.23

62167 US Foods Foodstuff and Supplies 7,170.03

62176 Petty Cash Emergency Money for Hurricane 5,000.00

Florida Department of Revenue Sales Tax 10,589.86              

Paychex Net Payroll PPE 230813 72,599.03              

US Department of Treasury Payroll Tax  PPE 230813 20,998.90

Paychex Net Payroll PPE 230827 70,419.22              

US Department of Treasury Payroll Tax  PPE 230827 20,081.12              

Total Expenditures $5,000 and above: 316,610.43        

Expenditures under $5,000: 76,278.74           

Total Expenditures: 392,889.17$      

Treasurer's Report
September 14, 2023

Barefoot Bay Recreation District

Page 1 of 1
Page 11 of 100



Board of Trustees  Meeting Agenda Memo 
Date: Thursday, September 14, 2023 
Title: Golf Course Fees and Charges 
Section & Item: 10.A 
Department: Golf 
Fiscal Impact: $1,162 (FY24 revenue decrease) 
Contact: Kent Cichon, Community Manager, Ernie Cruz, Golf 

Manager 
Attachments: Resolution 2023-14 Golf-Pro Shop Fees and Charges 
Reviewed by General 
Counsel: Yes 
Approved by: Kent Cichon, Community Manager 

 
 
  
Requested Action by BOT 
Consideration and approval of Resolution 2023-14. 
  
Background and Summary Information 
The BOT unanimously adjusted the BBRD Golf-Pro Shop fees and charges through consensus during the Fees & Charges 
Workshop on August 3, 2023, and then unanimously adopted these fees and charges through Resolution 2023-13 
during the BOT Regular Meeting on August 22, 2023. 
 
Subsequently, a need for greater consistency of golfer classifications on the fees and charges schedule was identified, as 
well as a greater consistency between this schedule and the BBRD Policy Manual.  These revisions are reflected on 
Exhibit A of Resolution 2023-14, a strikethrough/underline version of the FY24 BBRD Golf-Pro Shop Fees and Charges 
schedule. 
 
A budget amendment, amending the FY24 Adopted Budget, will be placed on the October 12, 2023, BOT Regular 
Meeting agenda to amend the Golf-Pro Shop Department’s FY24 Adopted Revenue Budget.  As a result of other BOT 
budgetary decisions made by consensus during the aforementioned workshop, this budget amendment will also amend 
the revenues and expenditures of other departments.  This budget amendment will result in no net change to the FY24 
Adopted Budget. 
 
Staff recommends the BOT approve Resolution 2023-14 revising the BBRD Golf-Pro Shop fees and charges, as shown in 
Exhibit A of Resolution 2023-14, and providing an effective date of October 1, 2023, for implementation of said fees and 
charges.   
 

Page 12 of 100



Return to: Barefoot Bay Recreation District  

625 Barefoot Boulevard 

Barefoot Bay FL 32976-7305 
 

  Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION 2023-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 
AMENDING THE BAREFOOT BAY GOLF COURSE FEE 
AND CHARGE SCHEDULE TO PROVIDE FOR 
AMENDED FEE AND CHARGE SCHEDULE 
CLASSIFICATIONS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Barefoot Bay Recreation District (the “District”) is a local unit of special-

purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 418, Florida Statutes; and   
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 418, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to adopt rules to govern 

the administration of the District and to adopt resolutions as may be necessary for the conduct 
of District business; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District operates numerous recreation activities and facilities, including an 
18-hole golf course, golf practice facilities, a golf pro shop, and more for the benefit of residents 
and non-resident members of the public; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees recently provided for new fees and charges associated 

with the use of the golf course facilities and associated amenities to maintain a high-level of 
service and offset increasing maintenance costs associated with the operation of the golf course 
and associated golf facilities; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees now desires to amend the golfer classifications on the 

golf course fee and charge schedule to provide for greater consistency with the golfer 
classifications used in District’s Policy Manual.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT, BREVARD COUNTY FLORIDA:  

 

Section 1. The strikethrough/underline version of the FY24 BBRD Golf-Pro Shop Fees 
and Charges schedule attached to this Resolution as “Exhibit A” shall become effective on 
October 1, 2023. 

 
 Section 2. If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 

provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage; shall replace, 

supplant, and supersede any prior policy or resolution of the District regarding fees and charges 
associated with the use of the golf course facilities and pro-shop; and shall remain in effect unless 
rescinded or repealed.   
 

Page 13 of 100



Return to: Barefoot Bay Recreation District  

625 Barefoot Boulevard 

Barefoot Bay FL 32976-7305 
 

  Page 2 of 2 

 

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by Trustee ________________.  The 
motion was seconded by Trustee __________________ and, upon being put to a vote, that vote 
was as follows: 

 
Chairman, Bruce Amoss 
Trustee, Joseph Klosky 
Trustee, Ann Hansen 
Trustee, Jeff Grunow 
Trustee, Hurrol Brinker 

 
 The Chairman thereupon declared this Resolution Done, Ordered, and Adopted on this 
14th day of September, 2023. 
 
 BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 
 
 
 By:  ______________________________________ 
 Bruce Amoss 

CHAIRMAN 
 
 
 ______________________________________ 
 Jeff Grunow 
 SECRETARY 
 

 

Page 14 of 100



Fee/Charge

Membership

Owner/Resident Single New 839.50            

Owner/Resident Single Renewal 768.32            

Owner/Resident Family New 1,288.00         

Owner/Resident Family Renewal 1,210.72         

Resident Family New 1,391.04         

Resident Family Renewal 1,307.58         

Renter/Non-Resident Single 925.00            

Renter/Non-Resident Family 1,412.00         

Employee Single New 671.60            

Employee Single Renewal 636.56            

Employee Family New 1,058.00         

Employee Family Renewal 994.52            

Trail Fee

Owner/Resident Single 689.00            

Owner/Resident Family 939.00            

Renter/Non-Resident Single 896.00            

Renter/Non-Resident Family 1,335.00         

Green's-Fee Peak Season

18-Holes Owner/Resident 30.00              

18-Holes Renter/Non-Resident 35.00              

9-Holes Owner/Resident 23.00              

9-Holes Renter/Non-Resident 28.00              

Twilight Owner/Resident 23.00              

Twilight Renter/Non-Resident 28.00              

Green's-Fee Summer

18-Holes Owner/Resident 14.00              

18-Holes Renter/Non-Resident 19.00              

9-Holes Owner/Resident 10.00              

9-Holes Renter/Non-Resident 15.00              

Twilight Owner/Resident 10.00              

Twilight Resident/Non-Resident 15.00              

Cart Fee

18-Holes 13.20              

9-Holes 7.70                

Twilight 7.70                

Club Storage

65.00              

Range Balls

Warm Up 1.75                

Small 3.00                

Large 5.00                

Rental Clubs

20.00              

EXHIBIT A

FY24 BBRD Golf-Pro Shop Fees & Charges
(Effective October 1, 2023)

Page 15 of 100



Board of 
Trustees  Meeting Agenda Memo 

Date: Thursday, September 14, 2023 
Title: Classification & Compensation Recommendation 
Section & 
Item: 

11.A 

Department: Resident Relations 
Fiscal Impact: $169,445 Pay Compensation (estimated), $107,384 for COLA/Merit 

increases $62,061 for Compression Adjustment, 
$56,971 State Mandated Minimum Wage Increase.  

Contact: Kent Cichon, Community Manager 
Attachments: RESOLUTION 2023-15, FY24 
Reviewed by 
General 
Counsel: Yes 
Approved by: Kent Cichon, Community Manager 

 

 
  
Requested Action by BOT 
Review recommended pay and classification plan and matching retirement contribution 
and approve Resolution 2023-15. 
  
Background and Summary Information 
 The FY22 pay and classification plan updated the BBRD’s personnel system for compliance with the new Florida 
minimum wages of $6.98 for tipped employees and $10.00 for non-tipped employees starting October 1, 2021, and an 
additional $1.00 an hour each subsequent year until 2026 when the annual increase returns to the CPI. 
  
A formal pay and benefits study was conducted by Evergreen Solutions and completed in 2022.  A final report of this 
study was presented to the BOT at its regular meeting on June 9, 2022.  The report identified that BBRD’s current 
employee compensation rates and benefits were generally below that of what the market is currently supporting. 
  
The F24 Adopted Budget was adopted by the BOT at its regular meeting on June 27, 2023.  The FY24 Adopted Budget 
includes a maximum of a 5.0% increase per employee to be split between a cost-of-living increase and a merit increase 
in the amount of $107,384 for all eligible employees and a compression adjustment in the amount of $62,061.  The FY24 
Adopted Budget also includes $56,971 to address the state mandated minimum wage increase. 
  
The BOT encourages additional retirement savings by its employees through the provision of a 401(a) Defined 
Contribution Plan and a 457 Deferred Compensation Plan for all full-time employees, and provides a limited dollar for 
dollar matching contribution for eligible employees that participate in these plans.  A BBRD matching contribution of 4% 
would correspond to an estimated $42,219 if all eligible employees participated and contributed the maximum 
matching amount. 
  
The Community Manager recommends the BOT approve resolution #2023-15 thereby adopting the FY24 Employee Pay 
and Classification Plan effective October1, 2023, with a maximum of a 5.0% combined COLA and merit increase, for all 
eligible employees, a state mandated minimum wage increase, and a compression adjustment; and approving a 
matching retirement contribution of up to 4% for eligible employees for FY24 to be effective October 1, 2023. 
 
 
 
  
 

Page 16 of 100



Return to: Barefoot Bay Recreation District 
625 Barefoot Boulevard

Barefoot Bay FL 32976-7305

 Page 1 of 2

RESOLUTION 2023-15

A RESOLUTION OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION 
DISTRICT SUPERSEDING AND REPLACING RESOLUTION 
2022-17 AND ADOPTING AN EMPLOYEE PAY AND 
CLASSIFICATION PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICT WITH OTHER PROVISIONS; AND, PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees desires to maintain a competitive pay and classification 
plan to attract and maintain a qualified workforce; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees first adopted a formal pay and classification plan 
Resolution 2017- 18; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees adopted Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Operating Budget 
through Resolution 2023-08 which contains funding for employee compensation; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees adopted Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Operating Budget 
Resolution 2023-08 which contains funding a maximum of 5.0% increase per employee to be split 
between a cost-of living-increase and a merit increase, funding for a pay compression 
adjustment, and funding to address the state mandated minimum wage increase; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees desires to maintain a pay and classification plan that is 
gender neutral and based on each employee's ability to perform her/his job and job market 
conditions; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees desires to formally adopt an employee pay and 
classification plan so residents and employees understand the minimum and maximum pay for 
each position; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees desires to encourage additional retirement savings by 
its employees through the provision of a 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan and a 457 Deferred 
Compensation Plan for all full time Barefoot Bay Recreation District employees;

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of Barefoot Bay Recreation District is desirous of 
adopting the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Employee Pay and Classification Plan attached and 
incorporated hereto as Exhibit A.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BAREFOOT BAY 
RECREATION DISTRICT, BREVARD COUNTY FLORIDA: 

Page 17 of 100



Return to: Barefoot Bay Recreation District 
625 Barefoot Boulevard

Barefoot Bay FL 32976-7305

 Page 2 of 2

Section 1. The Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Employee Pay and Classification Plan appearing as 
Exhibit A of this Resolution is hereby adopted to serve as the basis of employee compensation 
of Barefoot Bay Recreation District. The Employee Pay and Classification Plan appearing as 
Exhibit A of this Resolution shall supersede and replace any previously adopted Employee Pay 
and Classification Plan and shall apply prospectively beginning October 1, 2023.

Section 2. If any portion, clause, phrase, sentence, or classification of this resolution is 
held or declared to be either unconstitutional, invalid, inapplicable, inoperative or void, then 
such. declaration shall not be construed to affect other portions of the resolution; it is hereby 
declared to be the expressed opinion of the Trustees of the Barefoot Bay Recreation District that 
any such unconstitutional, invalid, inapplicable, inoperative or void portion or portions of this 
resolution did not induce its passage, and that without the inclusion of any such portion or 
portions of this resolution, the Trustees would have enacted the valid constitutional portions 
thereof.

Section 3. Conflict with other Provisions. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed and all resolutions or parts or resolutions not in conflict herewith 
are hereby continued in full force and effect.

Section 4. Effective Date. The effective date of the attached Fiscal Year 2023-2024 
Employee Pay and Classification Plan is October 1, 2023.

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by Trustee ________________.  The 
motion was seconded by Trustee __________________ and, upon being put to a vote, that vote 
was as follows:

Trustee Bruce Amoss
Trustee Hurrol Brinker
Trustee Jeff Grunow
Trustee Joe Klosky
Trustee Ann Hansen 

The Chairman thereupon declared this Resolution Done, Ordered, and Adopted on this 
14th day of September, 2023.

BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT

By:  ______________________________________
Bruce Amoss
CHAIRMAN

______________________________________
Jeff Grunow
SECRETARY

Page 18 of 100



Grade Proposed
Minimum

Proposed
Midpoint

Proposed
Maximum

1 $ 12.00 $15.30 $18.60

2 $12.90 $16.45 $20.00
3 $13.70 $17.47 $21.23
4 $14.61 $18.63 $22.64
5 $16.05 $20.46 $24.88
6 $17.46 $22.26 $27.06
7 $18.82 $24.00 $29.17
8 $19.25 $24.54 $29.84
9 $21.86 $27.87 $33.88

10 $23.56 $30.04 $36.52
11 $25.40 $32.39 $39.37
12 $27.37 $34.90 $42.43
13 $29.10 $37.11 $45.11
14 $30.81 $39.29 $47.76
15 $33.50 $42.72 $51.93
16 $35.91 $45.79 $55.66
17 $37.58 $47.92 $58.25
18 $39.24 $50.04 $60.83
19 $41.17 $52.50 $63.82
20 $43.09 $54.94 $66.79

Grade Proposed
Minimum

Proposed
Midpoint

Proposed
Maximum

T1 $ 8.98 $11.45 $13.92

T2 $9.64 $12.29 $14.94
T3 $10.29 $13.12 $15.95

General

Tipped

FY24 Pay and Classification Plan 

(Effective October1, 2023)

Exhibit A

Page 19 of 100



Board of Trustees  Meeting Agenda Memo 
Date: Thursday, September 14, 2023 
Title: Liability & Workers Compensation Insurance Award of 

Contract 
Section & Item: 11.B 
Department: Administration, District Clerk 
Fiscal Impact: $250,203 (FY24 Budget of $208,265) 
Contact: Kent Cichon, Community Manager, Stephanie Brown, 

District Clerk 
Attachments: Brown & Brown Proposal 
Reviewed by General 
Counsel: N/A 
Approved by: Kent Cichon, Community Manager 

 

 
  
Requested Action by BOT 
Award Liability & Workers' Compensation Insurance policy to PGIT (Brown & Brown) for FY24. 
  
Background and Summary Information 
The general liability, workers' compensation and liquor liability coverage provided by FIA (Egis) is set to expire on 
September 30, 2023. Staff solicited proposals from Egis, Travelers Insurance, FMIT and PGIT (Brown & Brown) and only 
PGIT has responded with a proposal, which is attached. 
 
As with private homeowners' insurance, BBRD's liability insurance premiums are based on the history of claims, amount 
of coverage, and overall industry trends. For the reasons previously stated, the liability premium has increased to 
$192,809 from $124,851 the previous year (a difference of $67,958). 
 
BBRD's workers' compensation insurance premiums are based on experience, types of work performed by employees, 
and industry trends. Specifically, experience is rated based on the "modifier" of the three prior years' experience. A 
modifier of 1.00 is average. Please note, the increased experience modifier is from the claims activity on the previous 
FMIT policy and the last two years of FIA policies, thus an increase in premium from $28,430.50 to $42,024 (a difference 
of $13,593.50). BBRD's modifier has changed per the following: 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 

Page 20 of 100



 
 
 
PGIT does not offer liquor liability as a part of their basic plan but has facilitated a separate policy provided by Founders 
Insurance Company in the amount of $15,370. 
 
Staff recommends the BOT award liability and workers' compensation insurance coverage policy to Preferred 
Governmental Insurance Trust (Brown & Brown) in the amount of $234,833, plus the cost of liquor liability ($15,370), 
authorize Chairman Amoss to sign the agreement and instruct staff to prepare a budget amendment for the overage to 
be presented at a future BOT meeting. 
 

Page 21 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 1 of 61 

 
Page 22 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 2 of 61 

 

Table of Contents 
 Who We Are ............................................................................................ 3 

 Preparing You for Tomorrow’s Risks—Today™ ...................................... 5 

 Named Insured ........................................................................................ 6 

 Location(s) ............................................................................................... 6 

 Property ................................................................................................... 7 

 Inland Marine ......................................................................................... 10 

 Crime ..................................................................................................... 11 

 General Liability ..................................................................................... 12 

 Understanding Claims-Made Policy ...................................................... 14 

 Business Auto ........................................................................................ 15 

 Workers' Compensation ........................................................................ 18 

 Proposal Premium Summary ................................................................. 19 

 A. M. Best .............................................................................................. 21 

 Compensation Disclosure ...................................................................... 22 

Page 23 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 3 of 61 

 

Who We Are 
 

 
 

Growth has no finish line. 
No matter where you are on your growth journey, we can help you find solutions to meet your ever-evolving insurance and 
risk management needs. If you are a highly complex multinational company, an individual or anything in between, our 
experienced teams can help every step of the way. 
 

Discover Our Capabilities 
As a successful business, you plan for the future and adapt as circumstances change your course. At Brown & Brown, we 
help you navigate the path forward, by taking a different approach to how you view, analyze and purchase insurance. Your 
exposures are unique, and you deserve coverage options designed to help protect your assets, interests and reputation. 
Our teams work to understand your business and your risk management plan by providing personalized local service 
complemented by the exceptional resources and capabilities of a national brokerage. 
 

Our History 
Brown & Brown Insurance was founded in Daytona Beach, Florida, in 1939 by cousins J. Adrian Brown and Charles 
Covington Owen. In 1959, Adrian’s son, Hyatt, took leadership of the family business. Under his direction, the Brown & 
Brown vision of a lean and profit-oriented organization came into focus. Following a merger in 1993, the company became 
Poe & Brown, Inc., publicly traded on Nasdaq. In 1998, Poe & Brown was changed back to Brown & Brown and became 
listed on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE: BRO), joining the S&P 500 in 2021. The company has continued to thrive 
under Chief Executive Officer (CEO) J. Powell Brown, who became the third generation to lead the organization in 2009. 
We consistently deliver high-quality solutions and services to a broad array of customers. With a precise and focused 
acquisition strategy, Brown & Brown has become one of the insurance industry’s most powerful and influential leaders. 
 

Our Mission 
We are dedicated to making a positive difference in the lives of our customers by helping to protect what they value most. 
With 350+ locations and growing, we have teammates across the globe who are dedicated to serving our customers and 
local communities. 
 

Our Culture 
We believe in doing what is best for our customers, communities, teammates, carrier partners and shareholders—always. 
Powered by a culture that values high performance and perseverance, the cornerstone of Brown & Brown’s guiding 
principles are people, service and innovation. 
 
 

 

 

Page 24 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 4 of 61 

 

 

Page 25 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 5 of 61 

 

Preparing You for Tomorrow’s Risks—Today™ 
 

 
We pride ourselves on our ability to couple national strength with local, personalized service. Our Brown & Brown of 
Florida, Inc. - based team is as connected to the more than 11,000 teammates across Brown & Brown and our team of 
companies as it is here in our community. 
 
We have become a leading insurance brokerage because we view insurance differently and utilize our vast experience 
and wide-reaching network to deliver superior service and solutions to our customers, both big and small. 
 
We believe that our teammates and the relationships they form with our customers are our strength. Our reputation has 
been built on a solid foundation of teamwork, strengthened by people who are dedicated to providing the highest degree 
of service. Our team thanks you for the opportunity to work together. Please find our contact information below.  
 
 
 

Service Team 
 

Name Title Email Business Phone 
Dan Kross CIC, ARM Vice President Dan.Kross@bbrown.com (772) 469-1503 

Leislie Hernandez, ACSR Marketing Team Leader Leislie.Hernandez@bbrown.com (321) 426-2311 

 

 

Page 26 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 6 of 61 

 

Named Insured 
 

 

Named Insured 
 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District 

 
This list includes all the named insureds we presently have on your policies. Should any revisions to this listing be 
required, please notify our office immediately.  

 
Location(s) 

 
 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District  
625 Barefoot Bay Blvd Barefoot Bay, FL 32976  

 

Loc # Address City State Zip 
1 625 Barefoot Blvd Barefoot Bay FL 32976 

2 935 Barefoot Bay Barefoot Bay FL 32976 

3 895 Flacon Dr Barefoot Bay FL 32976 

4 1344 Gardenia Dr Barefoot Bay FL 32976 

5 1080 Parkway Lane Barefoot Bay FL 32976 

6 7900 US Highway 1 Barefoot Bay FL 32976 

7 1127 W Wren Circle Barefoot Bay FL 32976 

8 N End Wren Circle Barefoot Bay FL 32976 

9 1176 Barefoot Circle Barefoot Bay FL 32976 

10 Tequesta Dr and Micco Rd Barefoot Bay FL 32976 

11 Barefoot Bay & US 1 Barefoot Bay FL 32976 

12 931 Barefoot Blvd Barefoot Bay FL 32976 

13 8701 Highway A1A Barefoot Bay FL 32976 

14 1225 Barefoot Cir Barefoot Bay FL 32976 

 

 

Page 27 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 7 of 61 

 

Property 
 

 

Premise Information: 
Loc 
# 

Bldg 
# 

Description Address Building Personal 
Property 

1 1 Lounge Building 625 Barefoot Blvd, Barefoot Bay, FL $580,800 $40,200 

1 2 Building A & B 625 Barefoot Blvd, Barefoot Bay, FL $2,112,000 $140,200 

1 3 Building C 625 Barefoot Blvd, Barefoot Bay, FL $432,000 $21,800 

1 4 60,500 Gallon Pool 625 Barefoot Blvd, Barefoot Bay, FL $363,000 $0 

1 5 Swimming Pool Pavilion 625 Barefoot Blvd, Barefoot Bay, FL $58,600 $0 

1 6 Tennis Pro Shop / Shelter 625 Barefoot Blvd, Barefoot Bay, FL $25,500 $2,200 

1 7 Storage Shed #1 625 Barefoot Blvd, Barefoot Bay, FL $4,200 $0 

1 8 Storage Shed #2 625 Barefoot Blvd, Barefoot Bay, FL $4,200 $0 

1 9 Storage Shed #3 625 Barefoot Blvd, Barefoot Bay, FL $4,200 $0 

1 10 Storage Shed - Lawn Bowling 625 Barefoot Blvd, Barefoot Bay, FL $1,500 $0 

1 11 District Administration 625 Barefoot Blvd, Barefoot Bay, FL $1,200,000 $50,000 

2 1 Shopping Center 1 935 Barefoot Bay, Barefoot Bay, FL $1,515,000 $50,000 

2 2 Shopping Center 2 935 Barefoot Bay, Barefoot Bay, FL $867,000 $25,000 

2 3 Storage Building 935 Barefoot Bay, Barefoot Bay, FL $15,000 $2,400 

3 1 Maintenance & Equipment 895 Flacon Dr, Barefoot Bay, FL $414,000 $126,800 

3 2 Fuel Pavilion 895 Flacon Dr, Barefoot Bay, FL $6,350 $5,900 

3 3 Ted's Shed 895 Flacon Dr, Barefoot Bay, FL $6,120 $7,000 

3 4 Fueling Pump 895 Flacon Dr, Barefoot Bay, FL $69,100 $0 

3 5 Storage Shed 895 Flacon Dr, Barefoot Bay, FL $7,200 $0 

4 1 Swimming Pool #3 1344 Gardenia Dr, Barefoot Bay, FL $341,400 $0 

4 2 Bath House 1344 Gardenia Dr, Barefoot Bay, FL $123,200 $7,300 

5 1 Swimming Pool #2 1080 Parkway Lane, Barefoot Bay, FL $341,400 $0 

5 2 Bath House 1080 Parkway Lane, Barefoot Bay, FL $123,200 $7,300 

6 1 Fishing Pier with Pavilion and 
Lights 

7900 US Highway 1, Barefoot Bay, FL $661,130 $0 

7 1 Ballfield Restrooms 1127 W Wren Circle, Barefoot Bay, FL $40,500 $0 

7 2 Storage Shed 1127 W Wren Circle, Barefoot Bay, FL $2,810 $2,400 

7 3 Softball Field Dugouts (x2) 1127 W Wren Circle, Barefoot Bay, FL $12,000 $0 

8 1 Greenhouse Building N End Wren Circle, Barefoot Bay, FL $17,500 $0 

8 2 Storage Shed N End Wren Circle, Barefoot Bay, FL $5,090 $5,800 

9 1 Golf Course Maintenance 1176 Barefoot Circle, Barefoot Bay, FL $9,750 $22,400 

9 2 Break Room 1176 Barefoot Circle, Barefoot Bay, FL $5,760 $5,800 

9 3 Maintenance Storage w 
Attached Awning 

1176 Barefoot Circle, Barefoot Bay, FL $54,250 $49,700 

9 4 Tank (2) Diesel and Gas 1176 Barefoot Circle, Barefoot Bay, FL $8,900 $2,000 

10 1 Security Camera (6) and PVC 
Poles (3) 

Tequesta Dr and Micco Rd, Barefoot 
Bay, FL 

$6,000 $0 

11 1 Decorative Fountain Barefoot Bay & US 1, Barfoot Bay, FL $15,000 $0 

12 1 Customer Service Building 931 Barefoot Blvd, Barfoot Bay, FL $325,190 $18,000 

13 1 Well/Security System 8701 Highway A1A, Barfoot Bay, FL $16,800 $6,000 

14 1 19th Hole Restaurant 1225 Barefoot Cir, Barfoot Bay, FL $394,000 $80,075 

14 2 Recreation Hall 1225 Barefoot Cir, Barfoot Bay, FL $910,000 $40,000 

14 3 Golf Pro Shop 1225 Barefoot Cir, Barfoot Bay, FL $191,000 $65,000 

14 4 Golf Cart Storage Bay 1225 Barefoot Cir, Barfoot Bay, FL $44,000 $30,000 

Page 28 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 8 of 61 

 

Subjects of Insurance 
Subject of 
Insurance 

Limit Valuation Cause of 
Loss 

Deductible 

Blanket Building 
and Business 
Personal Property 

$12,147,925 Replacement 
Cost 

Special form $5,000 Per Occurrence – All Other Perils. 
5% Per Occurrence – Named Storm, subject to 
minimum of $35,000 

 
Boiler & Machinery 

Included in 
TIV 

   
$5,000 Per Occurrence 

Client ultimately chooses limits insured. 

 
Schedule of Sublimits – These limits do not increase any other applicable limit of liability. 
Coverage Description Limit Deductible 
Flood Limit – Per Occurrence 
Excess of NFIP, whether purchased or not 

$5,000,000 $5,000 Per Flood, except zones A, V excess of 
NFIP whether purchased or not 

 
Causes of Loss: 
Direct Physical Loss subject to the policy form’s exclusions and limitations. 

 
Note: Only limited coverage applies to outdoor fences, radio and TV antennas including satellite dishes, detached signs, 
trees, shrubs, and plants unless specifically scheduled on the policy. 

 
Extensions of Coverage: These limits do not increase any other applicable limit of liability.   

Coverage Limit 
Account Receivable $500,000 

Additional Expense $1,000,000 

Animals (annual aggregate limit) $5,000 

Business Income $500,000 

Buildings Under Construction If shown on Property Schedule 

Debris Removal $250,000 or 25% of loss, whichever is greater, 
per occurrence 

Demolition, Ordinance, and Increase Cost of Construction $500,000 

Duty to Defend Included 

Errors and Omissions $250,000 

Expediting Expense $5,000 

Fire Department Charges $25,000 

Fungus Cleanup Expense (annual aggregate limit) $50,000 

Lawns, Plants, Trees and Shrubs $25,000 

Leasehold Interest $0 

New Locations $2,000,000 

Personal Property of Employees $50,000 

Pollution Cleanup Expense (annual aggregate limit) $50,000 

Preservation of Property $250,000 

Professional Fees $20,000 

Property at Miscellaneous Unnamed Locations $150,000 

Recertification $10,000 

Service Interruption Coverage $100,000 

Transit $250,000 

 
Exclusions, and/or Limitations include but are not limited to:  
Excluded: Earth Movement and Terrorism 

Page 29 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 9 of 61 

 

Coinsurance Clause 
 
A clause under which the insured shares in losses to the extent that the insured is underinsured at the time of loss. The 
insurer grants a reduced rate to the insured providing the amount of insurance carried is 80%, 90% or 100% to value. If, at 
the time of loss, the insurance carried is less than required, the insured will share in the loss.  
 
Examples of 80% Coinsurance 

 

Building Value Insured Carried Loss Insurance Pays 
$100,000 $100,000 $60,000 $60,000 

$100,000 $80,000 $60,000 $60,000 

$100,000 $70,000 $60,000 $52,500 

 
*Amount Carried ($70,000) 
Amount Required ($80,000) x Loss - Deductible=Recovery Amount 
 

 

 

Page 30 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 10 of 61 

 

Inland Marine 
 

 
Property insurance for property in transit over land, certain types of moveable property, instrumentalities of transportation 
(such as bridges, roads, and piers, instrumentalities of communication (such as television and radio towers), and legal 
liability exposures of bailees. Many inland marine coverage forms provide coverage without regard to the location of the 
covered property; these are sometimes called "floater" policies. 

 
Equipment Floater 
 

Scheduled/Unscheduled Coverage Limit Perils Valuation 

Scheduled Scheduled Inland Marine $301,657 Special Form Actual Cash Value 

Unscheduled Unscheduled Equipment $1,000,000 (Less than 
$25,000 each item) 

Special Form Actual Cash Value 

Client ultimately chooses limits insured. 

 
Inland Marine Named Storm Deductible 

A 5% per occurrence, per covered equipment/item subject to $35,000 minimum per occurrence.   
 
For individually scheduled items, the deductible is calculated based upon the scheduled value of the item. 

 

Scheduled Equipment 
Item # Year Manufacturer Description Serial # Limit 

0001 2017 Bobcat Front End Loader  $38,000 

0002   Restroom Trailer 572165 $31,965 

0003   Kitchen Trailer 572311 $69,760 

0004 2023 Club Car Utility Cart A5CUBB2DJPA495854 $10,932 

0005   Boom Arm Mower  $18,000 

0006  Toto 360 Riding Mower  $28,000 

0007(*)   33 DR2E Golf Cars  $105,000 

Client ultimately chooses limits insured. 

 

 
(*) This item is rented, borrowed, or leased equipment. 

 

 

Page 31 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 11 of 61 

 

Crime 
 

 

Coverages: 
Coverage Description Limit Deductible 
 
Employee Dishonesty, including faithful performance, per loss 

 
$250,000 

 
$2,500 

 
Forgery and Alteration 

 
$250,000 

 
$2,500 

 
Theft Disappearance or Destruction 

 
$250,000 

 
$2,500 

 
Computer Fraud including Funds Transfer Fraud 

 
$250,000 

 
$2,500 

Client ultimately chooses limits insured. 

 

 

 

 

Page 32 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 12 of 61 

 

General Liability 
 

 

Coverage Type Coverage Basis 
Commercial General Liability Occurrence 

Deadly Weapon Protection Claims Made 

Public Officials Liability Claims Made 

Employment Practices Liability Claims Made 

Cyber Liability Claims Made 

 

 

General Liability 
Coverage Limit 
Bodily Injury and Property Damage Limit $5,000,000 

Personal and Advertising Injury Included 

Products & Completed Operations Limit Included 

Employee Benefits Liability Limit, per person $5,000,000 

Herbicide & Pesticide Aggregate Limit $1,000,000 

Medical Payments $5,000 

Fire Damage Included 

Sewer Backup and Water Damage Limit $10,000 no fault 
$200,000 at fault 
Subject to $200,000 aggregate 

PGIT MN-203 Part B Limit 
(Bert Harris, Inverse Condemnation, Takings claims; See Form for 
specifics) 

$100,000 Aggregate 

General Liability Deductible $0 

Higher limits may be available. 

 

Exposure Basis: 
Premium Basis Exposure 
Payroll 2,802,249.00 

 

 
Deadly Weapon Protection  

Coverage Description Limit Deductible 

Third Party Liability Coverage 
Crisis Management Services 
Counseling Services 
Funeral Services 

$1,000,000 
Included 
$250,000 sublimit 
$250,000 sublimit 

$0 

Retro Date:  10/01/2023 

 
Client ultimately chooses limits insured. 

 

Coverage Highlights:  Broad definition of Deadly Weapon Event, 24  hour Crisis Response Team Services 

 
Claims Expenses are inside the limit of liability.  Automatic Extended Reporting Period is 60 days. 

 

 

 

Page 33 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 13 of 61 

 

Public Officials Liability Coverage (Claims Made) 
Public Officials Liability Limit Deductible 
$5,000,000 per claim 
Aggregate Limit:  N/A 

$0 

Total Payroll:  $2,802,249 

Supplementary Payments:  Pre-termination $2,500 per employee / $5,000 annual aggregate 
Non-Monetary:  $100,000 Aggregate 

Higher limits may be available. 
 

Employment Practices Liability Coverage (Claim Made) 
Employment Practices Liability Limit Deductible 
$5,000,000 per claim 
Aggregate Limit:  N/A 

$0 

Full Time:  36 
Part Time: 43 
Volunteers: 0 

Higher limits may be available. 
Cyber Liability (Claim Made) 
Coverage Description Limit  Deductible 
Policy Limit $2,000,000 annual aggregate Applies per below 

Third Party Liability Coverage: 

• Privacy & Security Liability 

• Media Content Services Liability 

• PCI DSS 

 
$2,000,000 each claim 
$2,000,000 each claim 
$1,000,000 sublimit 

 
$25,000 
$25,000 
$25,000 

First Party Liability Coverage: 

• Cyber Extortion & Ransomware 

• Data Breach & Crisis Management 

• Data Recovery 

• Business Interruption / Extra Expense 

• Cyber Crime 

• Utility Fraud 

• Bricking Coverage 

• System Failure – BI/EE 

• Dependent Business Interruption 
o BI/EE 
o System Failure 

 
$500,000 each claim 
$2,000,000 each claim 
$2,000,000 each claim 
$2,000,000 each claim 
$250,000 Agg – see form for sublimits 
$100,000 Agg – see form for sublimits 
$500,000 sublimit 
$1,000,000 sublimit 
$1,000,000 sublimit 
Included in above sublimit 
$1,000,000 sublimit 

 
$25,000 
$25,000 
$25,000 
$25,000 / Waiting Period: 12 Hrs 
$25,000 
$25,000 
$25,000 
$25,000 / Waiting Period: 12 Hrs 
$25,000 / Waiting Period: 12 Hrs 
$25,000 / Waiting Period: 12 Hrs 
$25,000 / Waiting Period: 12 Hrs 

Retroactive date:  10/01/2023 

Voluntary Notification endorsement is included, see coverage form for all limits and sublimits 

Higher limits may be available. 
 
Extended Reporting Periods POL/EPLI/Cyber (only applicable for claims made) 
If the Trust terminates or does not renew this Coverage Agreement (other than for failure to pay a premium when due), or if 
the Public Entity terminates or does not renew this Coverage Agreement and does not obtain replacement coverage as of 
the effective date of such cancellation or non-renewal, the Public Entity shall have the right, upon payment of the additional 
premium described below, to a continuation of the coverage granted by this Coverage Agreement for at least one Extended 
Reporting Period as follows: 
A:  Automatic Extended Reporting Period – 60 days per PGIT MN 500 & PGIT MN 700 (Cyber form) 
B:  Optional Extended Reporting Period – 12 months at additional premium per PGIT MN 500 & PGIT MN 700 (Cyber form) 

 

Importance Notice: 
Defense Costs – Outside of the limit, does not erode the limit of General Liability, Law Enforcement Liability, Public 
Officials Liability, and Employment Practices Liability. 
 
Deductible does not apply to defense costs.  Self Insured Retention does apply to defense cost. 

Page 34 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 14 of 61 

 

Understanding Claims-Made Policy 
 

 
The claims-made policy provides coverage that is triggered when a claim is made against the insured during the policy 
period, providing the claim occurred after the retroactive date. 
 

Current Policy Year:  
The policy year begins on the effective date shown on the policy and expires on the expiration date also shown on the 
policy.  
 

Prior Acts or Retroactive Date:  
This date is shown on the policy.  This provision eliminates coverage for claims that took place prior to the specified 
retroactive date, even if the claim is first made during the policy period. 
 

Supplemental Extended Reporting Period (Tail Coverage): 
This is a provision found within the claims-made policy that extends the length of the reporting period allowing the insured 
to report claims that are made against the insured after the policy has expired or been canceled, provided the claim took 
place during the expired/canceled policy.  The ERP/Tail Coverage requires an additional premium and must be requested 
within the time frame as outlined in the policy. 

 

 

Page 35 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 15 of 61 

 

Liquor Liability 
 

 

Coverage Type Coverage Basis 
Liquor Liability  Occurrence 

 

Location Information 
Location Address 
1)  625 Barefoot Blvd., Barefoot Bay, FL 32976 

2)  1225 Barefoot Blvd., Barefoot Bay, FL 32976 

 

General Liability 
Coverage Limit 
Combined Single Limit – Per Occurrence $1,000,000 

Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 

  

Assault and Battery:  

A&B Combined Single Limit – Per Occurrence $50,000 

A&B Aggregate Limit $50,000 

  

Terrorism Buy Back Included 

Higher limits may be available. 

 

Exposure Basis: 
Location # Premium Basis Exposure 
1 Bar/Tavern $327,270 Gross Receipts 

2 Bar/Tavern $490,906 Gross Receipts 

 

 
Terms, Conditions and Endorsements included, but not limited to: 
 
Policy Subject to Final Audit 
25% Minimum Earned Premium 
Policy Fees are Fully Earned 
Florida Liquor Liability Coverage Part 
Virus or Bacteria Exclusion 
Exclusion – Firearms 
Exclusion – Underage Persons, Employees, Contractors, Subcontractors, Dancers and Entertainers 
Assault and/or Battery Coverage Buy-Back 
Terrorism 
 

 
 

  

Page 36 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 16 of 61 

 

Business Auto 
 

 

Coverages: 
Coverage Symbol Limit Deductible 
Liability - Combined Single Limit 7, 8, 9 $1,000,000 $0 

PIP-Basic 5 Statutory $0 

Medical payments 2 $2,500 N/A 

Uninsured motorist combined single limit 7 $100,000 N/A 

Comprehensive 7, 8 Actual Cash Value or cost of repair, whichever  
is less, minus deductible. 
Hired Comprehensive limit:  $35,000 

Per Schedule 
Hired Deductible: 
$2,500 

Collision 7, 8 Actual Cash Value or cost of repair, whichever  
is less, minus deductible. 
Hired Comprehensive limit:  $35,000 

Per Schedule 
Hired Deductible: 
$2,500 

Higher limits may be available. 

 
Garage Location Schedule: 
Garage Loc # Address 1 City State Zip 
1 625 Barefoot Blvd Barefoot Bay FL 32976 

 

Vehicle Schedule: 
 

Unit 
# 

Year Make Model VIN Liability PIP UM Med Comp 
Deductible 

Coll  
Deductible 

1 2021 Ford Ranger 1FTER1EH6MLD33582 x x x x $1000 $1000 

2 2021 Ford F150 1FTMF1CB4MKD84393 x x x x $1000 $1000 

3 2021 Other Trailer 3CVU81413MKD84393 x x x x $1000 $1000 

4 2022 Ford Ranger 1FTER1EHCNLD51059 x x x x $1000 $1000 

5 2011 Ford Econoline 1FTME1EW6BDB83974 x x x x $1000 $1000 

6 2013 Triple Crown Trailer 1XNCE1EW6BD39748 x x x x $1000 $1000 

7 2013 Ford F150 XL 1FTMF1CM7DKG41693 x x x x $1000 $1000 

8 2017 Ford F650 1FDPF6AY5HDB07047 x x x x $1000 $1000 

9 2018 Nissan Frontier 1N6BDOCT3JN735656 x x x x $1000 $1000 

10 2019 Ford F250 1FD7X2A69KEE88200 x x x x $1000 $1000 

11 2021 Ford F150 1FTMF1CB1MKD02104 x x x x $1000 $1000 

12 2021 Ford F250 1FT7X2A64MEC10974 x x x x $1000 $1000 

 

 
Vehicle Ownership  
The Named Insured represents that all scheduled vehicles are titled to the Named Insured or leased to the Named Insured. If 
not, you must notify us immediately in order to obtain proper coverage not currently proposed.  

 
Autos Furnished to Individuals  
If you furnish an auto to an individual that does not have a Personal Auto Policy or a Non-owned Auto Policy, please advise 
us so that we can recommend policy extensions or an additional policy to properly cover these individuals. 

Page 37 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 17 of 61 

 

Auto Symbols 
Symbol Description 
1 Any Auto 

2 Owned Autos only. Only those autos you own (and for Liability Coverage any trailers you don’t own while 
attached to power units you own). This includes those autos you acquire ownership of after the policy begins. 

3 Owned private passenger autos only. Only the private passenger autos you own. This includes those private 
passenger autos you acquire ownership of after the policy begins. 

4 Owned autos other than private passenger autos only. Only those autos, you own that are not of the private 
passenger type (and for Liability Coverage any trailers you don’t own while attached to power units you own). 
This includes those autos not of the private passenger type you acquire ownership of after the policy begins. 

5 Owned autos subject to no-fault. Only those autos you own that are required to have no-fault benefits in the 
state where they are licensed or principally garaged. This includes those autos you acquire ownership of after 
the policy begins provided they are required to have no-fault benefits in the state where they are licensed or 
principally garaged. 

6 Owned autos subject to a compulsory uninsured motorist’s law. Only those autos you own that because of the 
law in the state where they are licensed or principally garaged are required to have and cannot reject 
Uninsured Motorists Coverage. This includes those autos you acquire ownership of after the policy begins 
provided they are subject to the same state uninsured motorist’s requirement. 

7 Specifically Described Autos. Only those autos described in item three of the declarations for which a 
premium charge is shown (and for Liability Coverage any trailers you don’t own while attached to any power 
unit described in item three). 

8 Hired Autos Only. Only those autos you lease, hire, rent or borrow. This does not include any auto you lease, 
hire, rent or borrow from any of your employees or partners or members of their households. 

9 Non-owned Autos Only. Only those “autos” you do not own, lease, hire, rent or borrow and that are used in 
connection with your business. This includes “autos” owned by your employees or partners or members of 
their households but only while used in your business or your personal affairs. 

 
 
  

Page 38 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 18 of 61 

 

Workers' Compensation 
 

 

A. Workers' Compensation Insurance:  
     Part One of the policy applies to the Workers’ Compensation Law of the states listed below: 

 

State 
Florida 

 

 
B. Employers' Liability Insurance: 
      Part Two of the policy applies to work in each state listed in Item A 

 

Each Accident Limit Disease Policy Limit Disease Each Employee 
$1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 

Higher limits may be available. 

 

 
C. Other States Insurance: 
      Part Three of the policy applies to the states, if any listed below: 
Does not apply to ND, OH, WA, and WY (Monopolistic States). 
 
 

Rating Basis: 
State Class Code Description Payroll Rate Premium 
FL 8810 Clerical Office Employees NOC $1,100,096 0.15 $1,650.00 

FL 9012 Building or Property Management – 
Property Managers and Leasing 
Agents & Clerical, Salespersons 

$513,853 0.76 $3,905.00 

FL 9015 Building or Property Management - All 
Other Employees 

$290,167 3.30 $9,576.00 

FL 9060 Club – Country, Golf, Fishing, or Yacht 
– All Employees & Clerical, 
Salespersons, Drivers 

$170,142 1.46 $2,484.00 

FL 9084 Bar, Discotheque, Lounge, Night Club 
or Tavern 

$569,777 1.36 $7,749.00 

FL 9102 Park NOC – All Employees & Drivers $158,214 3.39 $5,363.00 

 

Description Premium 
Total Estimated Base Premium $30,727.00 

Workplace Safety Program Credit ($    615.00) 

Drug-free Workplace Program Credit ($ 1,506.00) 

Experience Modification (1.50) $14,303.00 

Premium Discount ($ 3,190.00) 

Schedule Rating Factor $  2,145.00 

Expense Constant $     160.00 

Estimated Annual Premium $42,024.00 

 
Policy is subject to audit. 

 

Page 39 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 19 of 61 

 

Proposal Premium Summary 
 

 

Line of Business Premium 
Property $103,325.00 

Inland Marine $    2,413.00 

Crime $       900.00 

General Liability $  56,016.00 

Public Officials and Employment Practices Liability $  19,044.00 

Cyber Liability $    2,500.00 

Automobile  $    8,611.00 

Total $192,809.00 

  

Liquor Liability $14,388.00 

Policy Fee $     258.78 

Surplus Lines Taxes $723.12 

Total $15,369.90 

  

Worker’s Compensation $  42,024.00 

  

Grand Total $250,202.90 

This quote is valid until 9.29.23 
25% Minimum Earned / Policy Fees are Fully Earned 

 
Quote Options: 
Line of Business Coverage Option Annual 

Premium 
Professional Liability $2,000,000 Limit with $5,000 Deductible $11,044.00 

General Liability $2,000,000 Limit with $5,000 Deductible $45,516.00 

Inland Marine $150,000 Fencing around district $1,275.00 

 
Payment Plans 

 
Line of Business Payment Option Bill Type 
Package and Worker’s Compensation Annual premium due upon request to bind coverage Agency Bill 

 

 

Quotation Terms and Conditions included but not limited to:  
Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust 

 
Package/Worker’s Compensation: 

• Down payment is due upon request to bind coverage. 

• Premium is late if not paid within 30 days of due date, unless otherwise stated. 

• Quote is subject to review and acceptance by Preferred Board of Trustees. 

• The Coverage Agreement premium shall be pro-rated as of the first day of coverage from the minimum policy 
premium. 

• The Preferred Property program is a shared limit.  The limits purchased are a per occurrence limit and in the event an 
occurrence exhausts the limit purchased by Preferred on behalf of the members, payment to you for a covered loss 
will be reduced pro-rata based on the amounts of covered loss by all members affected by the occurrence. 

Page 40 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 20 of 61 

 

Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust 
• Property losses that occur between the quote date and effective date of coverage, may trigger a pre-inspection of 

damaged locations prior to binding coverage.  This includes losses from Named Windstorm, Catastrophic Sinkhole 
and Fire events. Agent shall provide a report describing the extent of the damage and location(s) affected.  Please 
note, proposal excludes all property damage, known or unknown, relating to any event occurring prior to 10/01/2023. 

• The Trust requires that the Member maintains valid and current certificates of Workers’ Compensation Insurance on 
all work performed by persons other than its employees. 

• If NCCI re-promulgates a mod, we will honor the mod as promulgated.  If the mod changes during the fund year, we 
reserve the right to apply a correct mod back to the inception date of the Coverage Agreement. 

• Quote was prepared using payrolls supplied by client. 

• Safety and Drug Free program credits are subject to program requirements. 

• Payrolls are subject to final audit. 

• The quote presented herein is an all or nothing quote.  No single line of coverage may be bound without the support 
of the other lines and WC Coverage Agreement. 

• Coverage is not bound until confirmation is received from a licensed representative of Public Risk Underwriters. 

• Meet with Loss Control within 60 days of effective date of coverage. 

• During the proposed Coverage Agreement period, we will not charge additional premium for a single location or total 
site locations acquired or newly constructed during the year with values less than $15,000,000. If the newly added 
location was owned or acquired prior to the inception date of the Coverage Agreement then additional annual 
premium will be invoiced by endorsement.  For two year coverage period, additional premium will be charged on the 
second annual installment for locations added during the first year of the coverage agreement. 

• Preferred will be appraising all property currently scheduled.  At time of finalization of appraisal, building 
values are to be adjusted accordingly or Stated Valued endorsement will be applied with immediate effect. 

 
Subjectivities Required PRIOR to Bind Request 
Line of Business Required PRIOR to Bind Request 
Package and Worker’s 
Compensation 

• Premium payment payable to Brown & Brown in the amount of $234,673.00. 

• Initialed and signed POL/EPLI application. 

• Initialed and signed Preferred application. 

• Receipt of signed Participation Agreement. 

• Receipt of signed signature page. 

• Receipt of signed Uninsured Motorist Form. 

• Signed first page of the Preferred Application (Florida Fraud Statement) within 30 days of 
effective date of coverage. 

• Signed ACORD applications. 

• Completed and signed supplemental applications. 

• Signed/completed terrorism forms.  You must elect or reject coverage. The additional 
premium plus any fees and taxes will apply if signed rejection is not received by company 
or if electing coverage. 

• Signed Uninsured Motorist selection form.  

• Meet with Loss Control within 60 days of effective date of coverage. 

• Receipt of signed Drug Free and Safety Program application. 

• Receipt of signed Preferred Work Comp application. 

• Receipt of signed Participation agreement. 

• All lines of coverage (Package and Worker’s Compensation) must be accepted in order to 
bind coverage with Preferred.  Worker’s Compensation agreement is conditional upon 
binding Package coverage. 

• Signed Electronic Selection Form.   

Liquor Liability • Signed ACORD application. 

• Completed and signed Founders supplemental application. 

• Signed Surplus Lines Disclosure. 

 

 

Page 41 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 21 of 61 

 

A. M. Best 
 

 

A. M. Best Rating of Proposed Carriers: 
Line of Business Insurance Company Rating Admitted / Non-

Admitted 
Package & Workers’ Compensation Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust N/A Admitted 

Liquor Liability Founders Insurance Company A / XIII Non-Admitted 

 

General Rating: 
Rating Categories Rating Symbols 

Superior A+ to A++ 

Excellent A to A- 

Good B+ to B++ 

Fair B to B- 

Marginal C+ to C++ 

Weak C to C- 

Poor D 

 
These rating classifications reflect AM BEST’s opinion of the relative position of each company in comparison with others, 
based upon averages within the Property-Casualty insurance industry.  They are reflective of overall company services 
and standing within the industry. 
 

Financial Size Category: 
Class Range ($ in Thousands) 
Class I Up-$1,000 

Class II $1,000-$2,000 

Class III $2,000- $5,000 

Class IV $5,000-$10,000 

Class V $10,000-$25,000 

Class VI $25,000-$50,000 

Class VII $50,000-$100,000 

Class VIII $100,000-$250,000 

Class IX $250,000-$500,000 

Class X $500,000-$750,000 

Class XI $750,000-$1,000,000 

Class XII $1,000,000-$1,250,000 

Class XIII $1,250,000-$1,500,000 

Class XIV $1,500,000-$2,000,000 

Class XV $2,000,000-Greater 

 
The Financial Size Category is an indication of the size of an Insurer and is based on reported policyholder’s surplus 
conditional or technical reserve funds, such as mandatory securities valuation reserve, or other investments and operating 
contingency funds and/or miscellaneous voluntary reserves in liabilities ($ in Thousands) 
 
This information has been provided to you so that consideration is given to the financial condition of our proposed carriers.  
The financial information disclosed is the most recent available to Brown & Brown, Inc.  Brown & Brown, Inc. does not 
guarantee financial condition of the insurers listed above.   

Page 42 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 22 of 61 

 

Compensation Disclosure 
 

 
Compensation. In addition to the commissions or fees received by us for assistance with the placement, servicing, claims 
handling, or renewal of your insurance coverages, other parties, such as excess and surplus lines brokers, wholesale 
brokers, reinsurance intermediaries, underwriting managers and similar parties, some of which may be owned in whole or 
in part by Brown & Brown, Inc., may also receive compensation for their role in providing insurance products or services to 
you pursuant to their separate contracts with insurance or reinsurance carriers. That compensation is derived from your 
premium payments. Additionally, it is possible that we, or our corporate parents or affiliates, may receive contingent 
payments or allowances from insurers based on factors which are not client-specific, such as the performance and/or size 
of an overall book of business produced with an insurer. We generally do not know if such a contingent payment will be 
made by a particular insurer, or the amount of any such contingent payments, until the underwriting year is closed. That 
compensation is partially derived from your premium dollars, after being combined (or “pooled”) with the premium dollars 
of other insureds that have purchased similar types of coverage. We may also receive invitations to programs sponsored 
and paid for by insurance carriers to inform brokers regarding their products and services, including possible participation 
in company-sponsored events such as trips, seminars, and advisory council meetings, based upon the total volume of 
business placed with the carrier you select. We may, on occasion, receive loans or credit from insurance companies. 
Additionally, in the ordinary course of our business, we may receive and retain interest on premiums you pay from the 
date we receive them until the date of premiums are remitted to the insurance company or intermediary. In the event that 
we assist with placement and other details of arranging for the financing of your insurance premium, we may also receive 
a fee from the premium finance company. 
 
If an intermediary is utilized in the placement of coverage, the intermediary may or may not be owned in whole or part by 
Brown & Brown, Inc. or its subsidiaries. Brown & Brown entities operate independently and are not required to utilize other 
companies owned by Brown & Brown, Inc., but routinely do so. In addition to providing access to the insurance company, 
the Wholesale Insurance Broker/Managing General Agent may provide additional services including, but not limited to: 
underwriting; loss control; risk placement; coverage review; claims coordination with insurance company; and policy 
issuance. Compensation paid for those services is derived from your premium payment, which may on average be 15% of 
the premium you pay for coverage, and may include additional fees charged by the intermediary. 
 
Questions and Information Requests. Should you have any questions, or require additional information, please contact 
this office at (772) 231-2828 or, if you prefer, submit your question or request online at 
http://www.bbinsurance.com/customerinquiry/ 

  

Page 43 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 23 of 61 

 

 
SURPLUS LINES DISCLOSURE and ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
At my direction, Brown & Brown of Florida, Inc. has placed my coverage in the surplus lines market. As required by Florida 
Statute 626.916, I have agreed to this placement. I understand that superior coverage may be available in the admitted 
market and at a lesser cost and that persons insured by surplus lines carriers are not protected by the Florida Insurance 
Guaranty Association with respect to any right of recovery for the obligation of an insolvent unlicensed insurer. 
 
I further understand the policy forms, conditions, premiums, and deductibles used by surplus lines insurers may be 
different from those found in policies used in the admitted market. I have been advised to carefully read the entire policy. 
 
Name Insured: Barefoot Bay Recreation District  
 
Date 
 
________________________________________________ 
Signature of Named Insured 
 
________________________________________________ 
Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 
 
Surplus Lines Issuing Company:    Founders Insurance Company  
Type of Insurance:     Liquor Liability    
Policy Term:      10/01/2023 – 10/01/2024  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Revised 11.20.2020 

  

Page 44 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 24 of 61 

 

 
Preferred Governmental Ins Trust “Preferred” 

 
Brown & Brown of Florida, Inc., and its parent company, Brown & Brown, Inc., (collectively “Brown & Brown”) do not 
certify, warrant or guarantee the financial soundness or stability of any insurance carrier or alternative risk transfer or 
pooling entity.  We endeavored to place your coverage with an insurance carrier with an AM Best Company financial 
rating of “A-” or better.* While Brown & Brown cannot certify, warrant or guarantee the financial soundness or stability of  
any insurance carrier or alternative risk transfer or pooling entity or otherwise predict whether the financial condition of any 
such entity  might improve or deteriorate, we are hereby providing you with notice and disclosure of financial condition so 
that you can make an informed decision regarding the placement of coverage.  Accordingly, with receipt of this notice you 
acknowledge the following with regard to the placement and any subsequent renewal of the coverage indicated below: 
 

• Brown & Brown may have other options for your insurance placement, including quotations with insurance 
carriers holding an “A-” or better rating from AM Best Company. Alternative quotes may be available with an A- or 
better rated carrier upon your request. 

• Coverage is being quoted through Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust (“Preferred”), which is as a 
Florida local government self-insurance fund established pursuant to Section 624.4622, Florida Statutes, as such 
Preferred is not rated by the AM Best Company. 

• Preferred is not subject to the protections afforded by any state guaranty fund or association. 

• The financial condition of insurance companies and other coverage providers including local government self-
insurance funds like Preferred may change rapidly and that such changes are beyond the control of Brown & 
Brown. 

• You should review the financial and membership information from Preferred and agree to abide by the 
conditions of membership established by Preferred. 

• You should consider the information provided, including the Preferred coverage quote and coverage placement 
and review it with your accountants, legal counsel and advisors. 

_________________________________________________ 
By: [NAME OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF INSURED] 
 
Named Insured: Barefoot Bay Recreation District  
Line of Coverage(s): Package and Worker’s Compensation 
Policy Number(s): TBD 
Policy Period(s):10/01/2023 - 10/01/2024  
Date of Notice: 09/05/2023 

 

  

Page 45 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 25 of 61 

 

  

Page 46 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 26 of 61 

 

 

  

Page 47 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 27 of 61 

 
Page 48 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 28 of 61 

 

  

 
  

Page 49 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 29 of 61 

 

 

   

Page 50 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 30 of 61 

 

   

Page 51 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 31 of 61 

 

  

Page 52 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 32 of 61 

 

 
  

Page 53 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 33 of 61 

 

  

Page 54 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 34 of 61 

 

  

Page 55 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 35 of 61 

 

  

Page 56 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 36 of 61 

 

  

Page 57 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 37 of 61 

 

 
  

Page 58 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 38 of 61 

 

  

Page 59 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 39 of 61 

 

  

Page 60 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 40 of 61 

 

  

Page 61 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 41 of 61 

 

  

Page 62 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 42 of 61 

 

  

Page 63 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 43 of 61 

 

  

Page 64 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 44 of 61 

 

`    

Page 65 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 45 of 61 

 

  

Page 66 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 46 of 61 

 

  

Page 67 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 47 of 61 

 

 
  

Page 68 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 48 of 61 

 

  

Page 69 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 49 of 61 

 

  

Page 70 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 50 of 61 

 

 
 
  

Page 71 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 51 of 61 

 

  

Page 72 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 52 of 61 

 

  

Page 73 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 53 of 61 

 

  

Page 74 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 54 of 61 

 

  

Page 75 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 55 of 61 

 

  

Page 76 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 56 of 61 

 

  

Page 77 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 57 of 61 

 

  

Page 78 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 58 of 61 

 

 
  

Page 79 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 59 of 61 

 

  

Page 80 of 100



 

This proposal is based upon the exposures made known to the Agency by you and contains only a 
general description of the coverage(s) and does not constitute a policy/contract. For complete policy 

information, including exclusions, limitations, and conditions, please refer to your policy.  
In the event of differences, the policy will prevail. 

 
BROWN & BROWN  

 60 of 61 

 

Electronic Selection / Rejection Option Form 
 

 
This is to comply with the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act. This will allow us to provide quality, consistent delivery of 

documents according to your preference. 
 

Selection of Electronic Insurance Policy Delivery Option 
 
I select the option to receive the following documents in connection with my insurance policy(ies) electronically.  
I acknowledge I may no longer receive paper policies, auto identification cards and other supporting documents 
you have in connection with my insurance policies unless specifically requested by me. 
 

______ 
Please initial here 

 

Rejection of Electronic Delivery Option 
 
I reject the option to receive my insurance policy(ies) and /or other supporting documents in connection with my insurance 
policy(ies) electronically for myself and all those covered under the policy. 
I elect to receive paper copies of such documents. 
 

______ 
Please initial here 

 
 
Electronic Delivery Disclosure 
 
The policyholder who elects to allow for insurance policy and/or other supporting documents in connection with the 
insurance policy(ies) to be sent to the electronic mail address provided should be diligent in updating the electronic mail 
address provided to Brown & Brown of Florida, Inc., in the event that the address should change. 
 
Insured                                                    Barefoot Bay Recreation District 
 
Email Address to receive documents:     _____________________________ 
 
Duly Authorized Representative Name:  _____________________________ 
 
Date:                                                        _____________________________                                  

 

  

Page 81 of 100



 

 

 

 
 

Page 82 of 100



Board of 
Trustees  Meeting Agenda Memo 

Date: Thursday, September 14, 2023 
Title: Lien Recording Service Award of Contract 
Section & Item: 11.C 
Department: Administration, Finance 
Fiscal Impact: $99 
Contact: Charles Henley, Finance Manager 
Attachments: Simplifile 2023 Master Service Agreement, BBRD Standard 

Contract Addendum (Simplifile Signed) 
Reviewed by General 
Counsel: Yes 
Approved by: Kent Cichon, Community Manager 

 

 
  
Requested Action by BOT 
Approval of the new Master Service Agreement for lien recording services with Simplifile LC  
  
Background and Summary Information 
The Lien Recording agreement with Simplifile LC expired July 26, 2023 due to the initiation of a $99 annual fee.  BBRD 
has utilized the services of Simplifile LC since July 26, 2017. 
 
Staff did an online search for alternatives and consulted with various title companies and the Brevard County Clerk of 
Court and was unable to find a competitive alternative. 
 
Item 8 (a) of the attached Master Service Agreement specifies an automatic renewal to the 1 year agreement with a 30-
day written notice requirement for cancelation. 
 
The BBRD Policy Manual requires that the Board of Trustees must approve and the Chair of the Board, or her/his 
designee, must execute contracts that exceed one year (1) in duration, including the renewal term or that exceed 
$15,000.00 in value.  
 
General Counsel Olsen has reviewed the Master Service Agreement and drafted the attached addendum executed by 
Simplifile LC. 
 
Staff recommends BOT approval of the Master Service Agreement with Simplifile LC and authorize Chair Amoss to 
execute the agreement and addendum. 
  
 

Page 83 of 100



Page 84 of 100



Page 85 of 100



Page 86 of 100



Page 87 of 100



Page 88 of 100



Page 89 of 100



Page 90 of 100



Page 91 of 100



Page 92 of 100



 1 

BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT  

STANDARD CONTRACT ADDENDUM  

 

THIS STANDARD CONTRACT ADDENDUM is made and entered into this            day 

of                                      , 2023, by and between the BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION 

DISTRICT, a special district of the State of Florida (hereinafter the "District" or “BBRD”), and 

Simplifile LC, a Utah limited liability company (hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”), 

concerning that certain agreement entitled Master Services Agreement, dated the 26th day of June, 

2023 (hereinafter referred to as the “Agreement”). 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, Section 119.0701, Fla. Stat., requires that certain public agency contracts 

must include certain statutorily required provisions concerning the contractor’s compliance for 

Florida’s Public Records Act; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 768.28, Fla. Stat., sets forth certain mandatory limitations on 

indemnification and liability for Florida public agencies; and 

 

WHEREAS, Florida law requires that public agency contracts be subject to non-

appropriation and thereby contingent upon appropriation during the public agency’s statutorily 

mandated annual budget approval process; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 448.095, Fla. Stat., imposes certain obligations on public agencies 

with regard to the use of the E-Verify system by their contractors and subcontractors; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 287.135, Fla. Stat., provides restrictions on local governments 

contracting with companies that are on certain Scrutinized Companies lists; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 287.05701, Fla. Stat., provides that the District may not request 

documentation of or consider a vendor's social, political, or ideological interests when determining 

if the vendor is a responsible vendor. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants set forth herein, the parties agree 

to this addendum as follows: 

 

1. Amendment. This Addendum hereby amends and supplements the terms of the 

Agreement.  In the event of a conflict between the terms of the Agreement and terms of the 

Addendum, the terms of the Addendum shall prevail. 

 

2. Public Records Compliance. Contractor agrees that, to the extent that it may "act 

on behalf" of the District within the meaning of Section 119.0701(1)(a), Florida Statutes in 

providing its services under this Agreement, it shall:  

 

14th

August

Page 93 of 100



 2 

(a) Keep and maintain public records required by the public agency to perform the 

service. 

(b) Upon request from the public agency’s custodian of public records, provide the 

public agency with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be 

inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost 

provided in this chapter or as otherwise provided by law. 

(c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public 

records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for 

the duration of the contract term and following completion of the contract if the 

contractor does not transfer the records to the public agency. 

(d) Upon completion of the contract, transfer, at no cost, to the public agency all public 

records in possession of the contractor or keep and maintain public records required 

by the public agency to perform the service. If the contractor transfers all public 

records to the public agency upon completion of the contract, the contractor shall 

destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt 

from public records disclosure requirements. If the contractor keeps and maintains 

public records upon completion of the contract, the contractor shall meet all 

applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored 

electronically must be provided to the public agency, upon request from the 

District’s custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the 

information technology systems of the District. 

(e) Pursuant to Section 119.0701(2)(a), Fla. Stat., IF THE CONTRACTOR 

HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF 

CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 

CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS 

RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE 

CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT:  

 
DISTRICT CLERK 

625 BAREFOOT BLVD.,  

BUILDING A, BAREFOOT BAY, FL 32976; 

772-664-3141; 

records@bbrd.org 

 

3. Public Records Compliance Indemnification. Contractor agrees to indemnify 

and hold the District harmless against any and all claims, damage awards, and causes of action 

arising from the contractor’s failure to comply with the public records disclosure requirements of 

Section 119.07(1), Florida Statutes, or by contractor’s failure to maintain public records that are 

exempt or confidential and exempt from the public records disclosure requirements, including, but 

not limited to, any third party claims or awards for attorneys’ fees and costs arising therefrom. 

Contractor authorizes the public agency to seek declaratory, injunctive, or other appropriate relief 

against Contractor in Brevard County Circuit Court on an expedited basis to enforce the 

requirements of this section. 

 

Page 94 of 100

mailto:records@bbrd.org
mailto:records@bbrd.org


 3 

4. Compliance/Consistency with Section 768.28, Fla. Stat. Any indemnification or 

agreement to defend or hold harmless by District specified in the Agreement shall not be construed 

as a waiver of District's sovereign immunity, and shall be limited to such indemnification and 

liability limits consistent with the requirements of Section 768.28, Fla. Stat. and subject to the 

procedural requirements set forth therein. Any other purported indemnification by District in the 

Agreement in derogation hereof shall be void and of no force or effect. 

 

5. Non-appropriation.  District’s performance and obligation to pay under this 

Agreement is contingent upon an appropriation during the District’s annual budget approval 

process.  If funds are not appropriated for a fiscal year, then the Contractor shall be notified as 

soon as is practical by memorandum from the District Manager or designee that funds have not 

been appropriated for continuation of the Agreement, and the Agreement shall expire at the end of 

the fiscal year for which funding has been appropriated.  The termination of the Agreement at 

fiscal year-end shall be without penalty or expense to the District subject to the District paying all 

invoices for services rendered during the period the Agreement was funded by appropriations. 

 

6. E-Verify Compliance. Contractor affirmatively states, under penalty of perjury, 

that in accordance with Section 448.095, Fla. Stat., Contractor is registered with and uses the E-

Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired employees, that in 

accordance with such statute, Contractor requires from each of its subcontractors an affidavit 

stating that the subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or subcontract with an unauthorized 

alien, and that Contractor is otherwise in compliance with Sections 448.09 and 448.095, Fla. Stat.   

 

7. Compliance/Consistency with Scrutinized Companies Provisions of Florida 

Statutes. Section 287.135(2)(a), Florida Statutes, prohibits a company from bidding on, 

submitting a proposal for, or entering into or renewing a contract for goods or services of any 

amount if, at the time of contracting or renewal, the company is on the Scrutinized Companies that 

Boycott Israel List, created pursuant to section 215.4725, Florida Statutes, or is engaged in a 

boycott of Israel. Section 287.135(2)(b), Florida Statutes, further prohibits a company from 

bidding on, submitting a proposal for, or entering into or renewing a contract for goods or services 

over one million dollars ($1,000,000) if, at the time of contracting or renewal, the company is on 

either the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with 

Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, both created pursuant to section 215.473, 

Florida Statutes, or the company is engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria. Contractor 

hereby certifies that Contractor is not listed on any of the following: (i) the Scrutinized Companies 

that Boycott Israel List, (ii) Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or (iii) the 

Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List. Contractor further 

hereby certifies that Contractor is not engaged in a boycott of Israel or engaged in business 

operations in Cuba or Syria. Contractor understands that pursuant to section 287.135, Florida 

Statutes, the submission of a false certification may subject Contractor to civil penalties, attorney’s 

fees, and/or costs. Contractor further understands that any contract with District for goods or 

services of any amount may be terminated at the option of District if Contractor (i) is found to 

have submitted a false certification, (ii) has been placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott 

Israel List, or (iii) is engaged in a boycott of Israel. And, in addition to the foregoing, if the amount 

of the contract is one million dollars ($1,000,000) or more, the contract may be terminated at the 

option of District if the company is found to have submitted a false certification, has been placed 

Page 95 of 100



 4 

on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with 

Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or has been engaged in business operations in 

Cuba or Syria. 

 

8. Responsible Vendor Determination. Contractor is hereby notified that Section 

287.05701, Fla. Stat., requires that the District may not request documentation of or consider a 

Contractor's social, political, or ideological interests when determining if the Contractor is a 

responsible vendor. 

 

9. Venue and Jurisdiction.  Notwithstanding any of other provision to the contrary, 

this Agreement and the parties’ actions under this Agreement shall be governed by and construed 

under the laws of the state of Florida, without reference to conflict of law principles. As a material 

condition of this Agreement, each Party hereby irrevocably and unconditionally: i) consents to 

submit and does submit to the jurisdiction of the Circuit Court in and for Brevard County, Florida 

for any actions, suits or proceedings arising out of or relating to this Agreement. 

 

10. Additional Terms.  Notwithstanding any of other provision to the contrary, the 

parties agree as follows: 

 

A. None. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed and delivered this instrument 

on the days and year indicated below and the signatories below to bind the parties set forth herein. 

 

      Contractor: 

 

 

      _____________________________________ 

 

Print Name: __________________________ 

       

      Title: ________________________________ 

 

      Company: Simplifile LC 

 

 

      BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 

      _____________________________________ 

 

Print Name: __________________________ 

 

 

Gregory Yeager
Vice President

Page 96 of 100

https://salesforceintegration.na2.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAADbTi9lcW-EMzTaj7XrK07wzEm08f8GJ3


Board of Trustees  Meeting Agenda Memo 
Date: Thursday, September 14, 2023 
Title: FY25 Budget Development Calendar 
Section & Item: 11.D 
Department: Administration 
Fiscal Impact: N/A 
Contact: Kent Cichon, Community Manager 
Attachments: FY25 Budget Development Calendar 
Reviewed by General Counsel: N/A 
Approved by: Kent Cichon, Community Manager   
  
Requested Action by BOT 
Review the proposed FY25 Budget Development Calendar and confirm the selected dates and times. 
  
Background and Summary Information 
The FY25 Budget Development Calendar is provided for transparency purposes and to encourage greater resident 
participation in the process prior to the adoption of the assessment rate and budget in June. The proposed process for 
the development, review, and adoption of the FY25 Budget includes the following: 
  

• Solicitation of new R&M/capital project ideas or changes from the community and individual Trustees during 
mid- October to early November 2023 

• Budget Kick-off/Town hall meeting in mid-October 2023 
• Budget Development Review/Townhall Meeting in late January 2024 
• Presentation of the FY25 Proposed Budget (including the Five-Year Capital Improvement and Project Plan) in 

mid-March 2024 
• BOT FY25 Budget Workshops in March, April, and, if needed, May 2024 
• A window (situated within BOT Budget workshops) allowing time for a possible request to go above CPI for 

critical needs, emergency contingencies, or unfunded mandates to be considered by the Brevard County Board 
of County Commissioners. 

  
  
While all dates and times can be changed by the BOT, staff requests the BOT choose from the list of openings below for 
the Budget Development Review/Townhall Meeting and give a consensus on the FY25 Budget Development Calendar as 
attached. 
 
Choices include: 
  
Budget Development Review/Townhall Meeting (select one date/time) 
  

• Thursday, January 18th at 9 am in Bldg. D/E 
• Thursday, January 25th at 6 pm in Bldg. D/E (staff's recommended date/time) 

 

Page 97 of 100



FY25 Budget Development Calendar 
 
 
 
BUDGET KICK-OFF/TOWNHALL MEETING (Currently Scheduled) 
Tuesday, 10/17/23 6-9pm 
 
BUDGET DEVELOPMENT REVIEW/TOWNHALL MEETING 
Thursday, 1/25/24 6-9pm 
 
BUDGET WORKSHOP DATES  
Tuesday, 3/19/24 6-8pm 
Tuesday, 4/2/24 9-11am  
Thursday, 4/18/24 9-11am 
Tuesday, 5/7/24 6-8pm 
 
BUDGET MAILOUT MEETING  
Tuesday, 5/28/24 1-3pm 
 
PUBLISH NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING (must be 21 days before hearing) 
Tuesday, 6/4/24  
 
BUDGET ADOPTION MEETING  
Tuesday, 6/25/24 1-3pm 
 
DEADLINE TO CERTIFY THE NON-AD VALOREM ASSESSMENT ROLL TO BREVARD COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR 
Sunday, 9/15/24  
 
CURRENT FISCAL YEAR ENDS 
Monday, 9/30/24  
 
NEW FISCAL YEAR BEGINS 
Tuesday, 10/1/24  
 
 

Page 98 of 100



Barefoot Bay Recreation District 
625 Barefoot Boulevard 
 Administration Building 

Barefoot Bay,  FL 32976-9233 
 

Phone 772-664-3141 
www.bbrd.org 

 
 

 
  
Memo To: Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Kent A. Cichon, Community Manager 
 
Date:  September 14, 2023 
 
Subject: Manager’s Report 
 
 
Resident Relations 
ARCC Meeting 8/15/2023 

• 1 Old Business – approved 

• 21 Consent Permits – approved  

• 8 Other Permits – approved 
 
ARCC Meeting 8/29/2023 

• 3 Old Business – approved 

• 11 Consent Permits – approved  

• 12 Other Permits – 10 approved, 2 tabled 
 
VC Meeting 8/11/2023 

• 22 Cases – came into compliance prior to the meeting 

• 1 Case – DOR is working with the homeowner 

• 9 Cases – found to be in violation 
 
 VC Meeting 8/25/2023 

• 17 Cases – came into compliance prior to the meeting 

• 6 Cases – found to be in violation 

 
 

Food & Beverage 

• Tonight’s Rustic Roast in Building A pays homage to Jimmy Buffet and his fun, easy style with a 

menu of cheeseburgers in paradise, the turkey beach club, and ahi tuna nachos.  Wear your 

tropical shirt, because there will be booze in the blender and Jimmy Buffet favorites will be 

playing all night. 

Page 99 of 100



Food & Beverage (continued) 
 

• A grand opening is planned for Thursday, October 26th to officially celebrate the opening of the 

Cabana Bay bar and reopening of Pool #1 with a ribbon cutting ceremony at 4pm.  After the 

ceremony, there will be a light appetizer buffet, and the Allen Wronko band will play on the Lake 

Side Stage until 7:30pm. 

 

Property Services 

• Pools 

o Completed painting the deck of Pool #1 

o Completed sealing the pavers of Pool #1 

o Completed the final preparations for the opening of Pool #1 

o Solicited bids for the reconstruction of the ADA ramp and shower stall entrance floor of 

Pool #1 

o Ordered fence materials and solicited bids for the construction of a concrete surface for 

the new smoking section of Pool #1 

o Replaced safety rings at Pool #1 

o Addressed ADA lift issues at Pool #1 & #2 

o Investigated the vacuum pressure issue for Pool #3 and replaced the main pump 

• Began preparations for painting of the Lounge   

• Repaired loose boards on the Beach walkover 

• Serviced all fire extinguishers 

• Serviced all AC units 

• Explored alternative materials for replacement ceiling tiles in the 19th Hole 

 
Golf-Pro Shop 

• Sod replacement of only severely damaged areas on several greens to commence the week of 

September 11th as recommended by Brightview  

• A revised fees & charges schedule will be effective October 1, 2023 

o The FY24 season new and renewal memberships will be accepted 

o Applications may be picked up after September 20, 2023 and will not be accepted prior 

to October 1, 2023 

o Please remember to bring in your BBRD ID badge  

o Provide updated insurance paperwork if a trail fee is being added  

o Contact the Pro Shop with questions at 772-664-3174 

 

Page 100 of 100


	1. Thought of the Day
	2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
	3. Roll Call
	4. Additions or Deletions to the Agenda
	5. Approval of the Agenda
	6. Presentations and Proclamations
	A. Employee Appreciation
	Milestone Anniversaries


	7. Approval of Minutes
	A. BOT regular meeting minutes dated August 22, 2023.
	08.22.2023


	8. Treasurer’s Report
	A. Treasurer's Report
	Treasurers BOT Meeting Report 230914


	9. Audience Participation
	10. Unfinished Business
	A. Golf Course Fees and Charges
	Agenda Memo
	Resolution 2023-14 Golf-Pro Shop Fees and Charges


	11. New Business
	A. Classification & Compensation Recommendation
	Agenda Memo
	RESOLUTION 2023-15
	FY24

	B. Liability & Workers Compensation Insurance Award o
	Agenda Memo
	Brown & Brown Proposal

	C. Lien Recording Service Award of Contract
	Agenda Memo
	Simplifile 2023 Master Service Agreement
	BBRD Standard Contract Addendum (Simplifile Signed)

	D. FY25 Budget Development Calendar
	Agenda Memo
	FY25 Budget Development Calendar


	12.  Manager’s Report
	A. September 14, 2023 Manager's Report
	Manager Report 091423


	13. Attorney’s Report
	14. Incidental Trustee Remarks
	15. Adjournment

		2023-08-14T07:25:07-0700
	Agreement certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign




